
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street 

Monday, August 27, 2012 
 

I. Moment of Silence 
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
III. Approval of Minutes of the August 13, 2012 City Council Meeting  
 
IV. Approval of Agenda of the August 27, 2012 City Council Meeting 
 
 V.        Public Comment 
             *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
 
VI.        Special Presentation 
 
             A.   City of Spartanburg 30 Years of Tree City USA Flag Presentation 
                      Presenter:  Dena Jacob, Regional Urban Forester, Piedmont 
 
VII.      Resolution 
 
             A. Approving the Purchase of 18.24 Acres of Property from Mt. Zion Full Gospel 
 Baptist Church (Portion of Parcel 7016-008.00) 
                       Presenter:  Darwin Simpson, Airport Director 
 
   
VIII.     Other Business 
 
  A. Approval to Purchase Mobile Computer Infrastructure and Network Upgrade
  Presenter:  Major Steve Lamb, Public Safety 
 
             B.   Award of Bid for Bus Shelters 
  Presenter:  Dennis Locke, Finance Director     
 
            C.        Consideration of Redistricting   
  Presenter:  Cathy McCabe, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 

Meetings. Requests must be made to the Communications & Marketing Office (596-2020) 24 hours in advance of the meeting. This is a Public 
Meeting and notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. 

 
 
 

As required by the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Spartanburg will provide interpretive services for the City Council 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   IX.     City Council Updates 
 
    X.      Adjournment 
 

* City Code Sec. 2-57. Citizen Appearance. Any citizen of the City of  Spartanburg may speak at a regular meeting on any matter 
pertaining to City Services and operations germane to items within the purview and authority of City Council, except personnel 
matters, by signing a Citizen’s Appearance form prior to the meeting stating the subject and purpose for speaking. No item 
considered by Council within the past twelve (12) months may be added as an agenda item other than by decision of City Council. 
The forms may be obtained from the Clerk and maintained by the same. Each person who gives notice may speak at the designated 
time and will be limited to a two (2) minute presentation. 

  

 
City Council Agenda 

Page Two – August 27, 2012 



 
III.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  
 



 
 

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street 

Monday, August 13, 2012 
 

(These minutes are subject to approval at the 
August 27, 2012 City Council meeting.) 

 
City Council met this date with the following members present: Mayor Junie White, 
Councilmembers Linda Dogan, Jerome Rice, Robert Reeder and Jan Scalisi. 
Councilmember Anderson was absent due to required military service. Mayor pro tem 
Cate Ryba was out of town. City Manager Ed Memmott and City Attorney Cathy McCabe 
were also in attendance. Notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in 
advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. All City Council meetings are 
recorded for a complete transcript. 

 
I. Moment of Silence - observed 
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance - recited 
 
III. Approval of Minutes of the July 23, 2012 City Council Meeting – 
  Councilmember Dogan made a motion to approve the minutes as received.     
  Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 4 to 0.  
 
IV. Approval of Agenda of the August 13, 2012 City Council Meeting –  
  Mayor White stated that an Executive Session was not needed and asked that the     
  agenda be amended to reflect the same. Councilmember Scalisi made a motion to  
  amend the agenda to remove the Executive Session and approve the amended agenda as   
  received. Councilmember Dogan seconded the motion, which carried unanimously            
 4 to 0. 
 
 V.        Public Comment - none 
             *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
 
Councilmember Rice arrived at the meeting. 
 
VI.       Resolutions 
             A. Approving Purchase of 149 Home Street (Block Map 7-16-10-175.00) 
 Presenter:  Wes Corrothers, Neighborhood Services Director 
 Mr. Corrothers presented the item to City Council as follows: 
  “Staff has been approached by the owner of 149 Home Street (TMS 7-16-10- 
  175.00) regarding the purchase of the property by the City.  The City owns  

 1  



  several properties along Sunny Street including 134 Bomar Avenue (TMS 7-16- 
  10-173.00), which is immediately adjacent to the proposed purchase parcel.    
 
  Staff has negotiated with the property owner and believes $2,500 is a reasonable  
  amount for the purchase of this property.   
  Staff is requesting approval of this Resolution to purchase the property located at  
  149 Home Street (TMS 7-16-10-175.00) from James McKelvey for $2,500.00. 
  BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:    CDBG funds.” 
  Councilmember Reeder made a motion to approve the resolution as presented.  
  Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 5 to 0. 
 
             B.       To Approve the City to Negotiate Final Terms and Conditions of a     
  Sponsorship Agreement for a 2012 Holiday Season Ice Rink 
  Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
  Mr. Memmott deferred to Special Events Manager Mandy Merck for     
  presentation of the item to City Council. She presented the item as follows: 
  “Management believes it is appropriate to brief City Council on a potential project 
  for downtown.  Over the past few weeks, staff has had conversations with a  
  prospective private sponsor of a 2012 Holiday Season Ice Rink.  Subject to  
  Council authorization and reaching final agreement with the sponsor, the ice rink  
  would be located on Morgan Square.  The prospective sponsor has tentatively  
  agreed to pay all net expenses associated with the ice rink.  The sponsor’s only  
  request of the City is the coordination of the project and paying for city personnel  
  to operate the facility.  Estimated City staff expenses are $25,000.  Staff is   
  comfortable with the potential sponsor’s financial ability to meet all terms and  
  conditions of a sponsorship agreement.   
  Staff believes that providing an ice rink in downtown Spartanburg is an   
  exceptional opportunity that would help activate downtown and benefit   
  businesses.  Other communities such as Charlotte, Raleigh, and Greenville (SC)  
  have utilized temporary ice rinks in their downtowns with great success.  This  
  special attraction and venue would be heavily promoted to encourage use and  
  bring citizens to downtown.    The Morgan Square location has convenient public  
  parking in the Magnolia Street and Dunbar Street parking garages.  Anticipated  
  hours of operation would be 3 pm to 9 pm on weekdays.  Weekend hours would  
  tentatively be 12 noon to 10 pm.  The cost to skate would be recommended at $10 
  per person – which includes the cost of renting skates.  It is expected that the  
  facility would be available for corporate and private event rentals as well. It is  
  expected that the ice rink would operate from mid-November to early January.     
  While there remains some number issues and challenges to be resolved including  
  equipment delivery schedule(s) and development of final written agreement(s),  
  time is of the essence if the City and sponsor are to move forward with this  
  project in 2012.  Staff is seeking approval of a Resolution that confirms Council  
  support for this initiative and authorizes management to proceed with final  
  negotiations and then execute a sponsorship agreement for a downtown ice rink.   
  If all final agreements can be executed, a formal announcement of the project  
  would be made at the appropriate time.   

 2  



 
  BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA: City would be responsible for covering the  
  costs of personnel to operate the facility and any public safety overtime expenses  
  estimated at a maximum cost of $25,000.  Revenues from other sponsorships and  
  ticket sales would be applied against cost expenditures.   Staff is proposing that  
  Broad Street Tax Increment Funding would be used to pay city personnel   
  expenses.” 
  After discussion, Councilmember Dogan made a motion to approve the   
  resolution as presented. Councilmember Reeder seconded the motion, which  
  carried unanimously 5 to 0.    
 
            C.        To Make Certain Findings of Benefit with Respect to Broad Street     
  Redevelopment Plan as Adopted by Ordinance of City Council on April 3,  
  1989, and as Amended on December 15, 1997 (West Main Street    
  Improvement Project) 
  Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
  Mr. Memmott presented the item to City Council as follows: 
  “Staff is recommending the use of $130,000 in Broad Street Tax Increment  
  Financing District Funds for streetscaping improvements for a portion of West  
  Main Street.  This project, while outside of Broad Street TIF district, is   
  immediately adjacent to the boundaries of the district and is an eligible public  
  improvement as defined in the TIF Redevelopment Plan.  This action requires the  
  approval of City Council.   
  Staff is requesting approval of a Resolution approving use of Broad Street TIF  
  funds for the West Main Street Improvement Project.  
  BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA: $130,000 in Broad Street TIF”. 
  After discussion, Councilmember Dogan made a motion to approve the   
  resolution as requested. Councilmember Reeder seconded the motion, which  
  carried unanimously 5 to 0. 
   
VII.     Other Business 
  A. Award of Bid for West Main Street Improvement Project 
  Presenter:  Tim Carter, Engineering Administrator 
  Mr. Carter presented the item to City Council as follows: 
  “Staff received competitive bids for streetscaping a portion of West Main and  
  Lafayette Streets on August 7.   The West Main Street project will include urban  
  streetscaping (wider sidewalks, pedestrian lighting, additional trees, and reduction 
  of travel lanes) from the West Main Street/Daniel Morgan Avenue intersection to  
  the CSX rail crossing.  Staff has discussed this project with Council and believes  
  it would significantly enhance the appearance of West Main Street as an entrance  
  to downtown. Improvements to Lafayette Street (Henry Street to Ribault Street)  
  were included in the bid package as an add alternate bid of $34,556 to take  
  advantage of more competitive unit cost pricing. Staff is proposing to install  
  wider sidewalks, new curb and gutter, and repaving on Lafayette Street.  Staff  
  believes these improvements will complement the YMCA project. The following  
  bids (including the Lafayette Street add alternate) were submitted:   

 3  



 
  Raby Construction Company, LLC (Greenville, SC)            $ 275,263.40 
  Sossamon Construction (Gaffney, SC)   $ 277,132.00 
  Secor Construction Company, LLC (Anderson, SC)             $ 296,522.20 
  Vaughn Curbing Company (Woodruff, SC)   $ 302,313.85 
  Staff has reviewed the bids and the qualifications of each contractor and has  
  determined that Raby Construction Company, LLC, is the responsive low bidder.   
  No bids were submitted from MWBE certified contractors.   
  Staff is requesting authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Raby  
  Construction Company, LLC for the completion of the project.” 
  BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  
  $ 140,000 - Spartanburg County Road Fee  
  $ 130,000 - Broad Street TIF District 
  $  35,000 – Multi-county Park Infrastructure Funding”. 
  After discussion, Councilmember Reeder made a motion to approve the bid  
  award  as recommended. Councilmember Rice seconded the motion, which  
  carried unanimously 5 to 0.  
 
             B.        Boards and Commissions – MWBE Applicant 
                         Presenter:  Connie McIntyre, City Clerk 
   Ms. McIntyre presented Lakeidra Barber’s application for consideration for   
   the MWBE Board. 
   Councilmember Dogan made a motion to waive the rules and appoint LaKeidra   
   Barber to the MWBE Board. Councilmember Rice seconded the motion, which  
   carried unanimously 5 to 0. 
 
 VIII.    City Council Updates – 
 Councilmember Dogan shared that she had spoken at a Women’s Conference 
 at Converse College the previous Wednesday and had enjoyed the experience.  
 She asked that anyone who could please volunteer at the Soup Kitchen. 
 Councilmember Reeder reminded Councilmembers of the Spartanburg County 
 Municipal Association meeting on August 23 at 6:30 p.m. at Wade’s Restaurant. 
 Councilmember Rice mentioned how well things were going at the Panthers 
 Training Camp. He also thanked everyone who was involved with the 
 Hubapalooza event at Barnet Park for the softball tournament attendees. 
 Mayor White thanked everyone involved with the National Night Out event.  
 
  IX.       Executive Session to Receive Information Regarding Economic Development –
 (Agenda amended to remove this item.) 
 
    X.      Adjournment – Councilmember Rice made a motion to adjourn the meeting.      
   Councilmember Reeder seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 5 to 0. The   
   meeting adjourned at 6:01 p.m. 
 

Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 

 4  



 

VII. A 

  
 



    REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 

TO:    Ed Memmott, City Manager     
 
FROM:   Darwin Simpson, Airport Manager 
      
SUBJECT:   Purchase of Property – 18.24 acres  
 
DATE:   August 15, 2012 
   
 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
Several years ago, an airport Layout Plan was approved by the FAA for the Spartanburg Downtown Airport which 
required the acquisition of parcels needed for the expansion of the safety zone and also for the expansion of the 
runway.    Several parcels were purchased in 2009 and the City now has the opportunity to purchase 18.24 acres of 
vacant land from Mt. Zion Full Gospel Baptist Church.   This property is adjacent to Mt. Zion Full Gospel Baptist 
Church and is a portion of Block Map Sheet 7-16-13-008.00.   The appraised value of the property is $109,000.00 
which the Church has agreed to accept as just compensation. 
  
 
 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
Approval for the purchase of property located just off Wimberly Drive which is a portion of Block Map 
Sheet 7-16-13-008.00 from Mt. Zion Full Gospel Baptist Church for the agreed upon price of $109,000.00. 
 
 
 
 
 
BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:    
 
$109,000 which will be reimbursed by the FAA.  
 
 



A RESOLUTION   
 

APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF 18.24 ACRES OF PROPERTY  
FROM MT. ZION FULL GOSPEL BAPTIST CHURCH  

(PORTION OF PARCEL 7-16-13-008.00) 
   
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Spartanburg’s Airport is vital to promoting the economic 
development of the City of Spartanburg (“City”); and 

 
WHEREAS, in 2003 the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”) approached 

the City about the lack of a Runway Safety Area (“Area”); and 
 
WHEREAS, FAA has provided reimbursement for the purchase of properties in 

the Area; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mt. Zion Full Gospel Baptist Church (“Church”) has voluntarily 

agreed to sell a portion of its property in the Area. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By the Mayor and Members of City 

Council of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 

SECTION 1: The City Attorney is hereby authorized to proceed with the 
purchase of 18.24 acres of Parcel 7-16-13-008.00 from Church in the amount of $109,000 
with reimbursement from FAA. 

 
SECTION 2: This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 

enactment. 
 

DONE AND RATIFIED this __________ day of ______________, 2012. 
 
 
 

________________________________  
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_____________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 



 
 

VIII. A  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



s    REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 

TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager     
 
FROM: Major Steve Lamb, Public Safety Department   
      
SUBJECT: Approval to Purchase Mobile Computer Infrastructure and Network Upgrade  
 
DATE: August 14, 2012 
   
 

BACKGROUND: Over the last decade, the Public Safety Department has utilized an advanced network of 
integrated computers assigned to individual patrol units. This system has allowed officers to create reports 
in the field and wirelessly send them to our records division. They can also query data from several 
internal, local and national databases. This process has saved countless man hours, reduced the number of 
needed clerical positions and established our real-time data flow system.  
 
However, over the last several years our wireless infrastructure has begun to deteriorate and the technology 
has become almost obsolete. We are currently utilizing outdated cellular technology and computer 
modems.  We are also unable to update our police records management system’s software because our 
infrastructure will not support the necessary changes. Basically, without a complete infrastructure overhaul 
our data network will eventually become unusable to our department.  
 
The Public Safety and Information Technology Divisions have researched for over a year for the best 
possible solution. We searched for a national company with a record of producing high quality products 
that could meet our short and long term goals. The overall plan is to install new cellular modems in 48 
patrol vehicles and utilize advanced software to simultaneously oversee these multiple computer systems.    
 
All requested purchases fall under the U.S General Services Administration (national contract) or the South 
Carolina State Contract. These purchases will also adhere to the City’s policy and procurement guidelines.    

 
Company  Price 

Utility (GSA) $93,379 
Dell (State Contract) $13,618 

AT&T (State Contract) $44,250 
Microsoft (State Contract) $9,540 

Total $160,787 
 

ACTION REQUESTED:  The Public Safety Department requests approval to upgrade their mobile 
computer system’s infrastructure by utilizing several procurement approved vendors.   
 
BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:  This project will be funded through the 2009 Recovery Act JAG 
Program. (MG0135) No City of Spartanburg funds will be used for the purchase of this system.  After one 
year, the City of Spartanburg will be responsible for an annual modem maintenance fee of approximately 



$13,632. This will include maintenance for all 48 modems at $285 for each system. After three years, the 
City of Spartanburg will be responsible for annual software maintenance of approximately $6,000 yearly.  



 

VIII. B  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



    REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
TO:   Ed Memmott, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Dennis R. Locke, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Bus Shelters 
 
DATE:  August 23, 2012 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
SPARTA staff is in the process of reviewing the placement and condition of the shelter 
structures located at bus stops throughout the city.  We are reviewing all high volume bus stops 
to determine the highest priority needs for installation and replacement of bus shelters.  We 
have identified some FTA grant funding that will allow us to purchase a number of attractive 
high quality shelter units to be installed later this year at the locations identified as highest 
priority in the review process.   
 
We received bids from: Columbia Equipment Company (Jamaica, NY)   $4,060.00 ea 
                                       Duo-Gard Industries (Canto, MI)     $4,671.00 ea 
                                       Brasco International Incorporated (Madison Heights, MI) $5,320.00 ea 
 
No MWBE firms responded. 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
After review of the bids and qualifications from each vendor, we determined that Columbia 
Equipment Co. is the responsive low bidder. We are planning to purchase nine shelters.  We request 
Council approval accordingly. 
 
 
BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA: 
 
The total price for this purchase will be $38,732.40 to be paid by F.T.A. Grant number  
SC 90-X166-00. This grant has an 80/20 match requirement that is included in the current year 
Budget. 
 



 

VIII. C  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



    REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 

TO:    Mayor and Members of Council  
 
CC:    Ed Memmott, City Manager 
    Chris Story, Assistant City Manager    
 
FROM:   Cathy McCabe, City Attorney 
      
SUBJECT:   Consideration of Redistricting  
 
DATE:   August 22, 2012 
   
 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
In order for the City to comply with various federal requirements, it is necessary for Council to consider 
whether the boundaries of its single member districts require adjustment based on demographic and/or 
population changes.  These assessments are routinely done every 10 years to coincide with the federal 
census.  Each local government having single member election districts is expected to engage in good faith 
efforts to maintain roughly equal (by population) election districts.  There are also legal protections 
regarding minority voters that must be respected during a redistricting process.   Given the population 
changes for the City between 2000 and 2010, staff anticipates that boundary changes for the City’s six 
single member districts will be necessary. A redistricting plan process must also:  

 

1.  Adhere to the 1965 Voting Rights Act as amended and controlling court decisions. 
 

2. Ensure that parts of districts established are contiguous. 
 
3. Respect Communities of Interest. 
 
4. Attempt to maintain constituent consistency. 
 
5. Solicit public input. 
 
6. Avoid splitting voting precincts if possible. 
 

 



To assist local governments in this process, the State of South Carolina offers support through the State 
Budget and Control Board – Office of Research and Statistics.  After initial consultation with Mr. Bowers, 
Executive Director of the Office of Research and Statistic, staff is recommending the following district plan 
development process.   

 
September 10, 2012 – Briefing from Mr. Bowers.  It is expected that Mr. Bowers will provide his 
assessment of the City current district boundaries and present a sample plan of changes for Council’s initial 
consideration.  If Council believes the sample plan presented by Mr. Bowers is acceptable, Council could 
vote to accept the sample as its “starting point” plan.  This sample plan would then be released to the public 
in the next few days after this meeting.     
 
October 22, 2012 – Conduct a public hearing and possible first reading of an Ordinance to adopt new 
district boundaries. Council may decide to delay its vote on the plan based on comments received during 
the public hearing and set more time for public comment and input.    
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
Consider staff’s suggested schedule and process for Council redistricting and provide direction to staff for 
moving this process forward.  
 
 
 
BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:    
 
Not applicable. 
 


